# Dundee City Council Draft Housing Land Audit 2022



# **Contents**

1 - Introduction	2
2 - General Principles	3
3 - Consultation	4
4 - Housing Land Supply	5
5 - Greenfield Effective Supply	6
6 - Brownfield Effective Supply	7
7 - Constrained Sites	11
8 - Small Sites	12
9 - Completions (By Tenure)	13
10 - Sites Removed From Audit	14
Appendix 1 Effectiveness Criteria	15
Appendix 2 Glossary and Terms	16

#### 1-Introduction

The annual audit of housing land provides a factual statement of land supply within the administrative boundaries of Dundee City Council.

The audit provides an important source of information for the monitoring of the Dundee Local Development Plan 2019 and TAYplan Strategic Development Plan.

The audit identifies that there is an existing generous effective supply of land for housing across the City.

The Draft Dundee Housing Land Audit 2022 has been prepared in line with Scottish Planning Policy and PAN 2/2010: Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audit and provides a snap shot in time of the housing land supply within the City as of April 2022.

#### 2-General Principles

The audit provides a range of information relating to each housing site:

- The schedules in Sections 5, 6 and 7 are grouped by effective supply and constrained supply, as defined by the SPP, and within PAN 2/2010.
- Each site has a unique site reference followed (where appropriate) by the Local Development Plan reference, the name of the site and the owner, developer or applicant.
- The status of the site relates to whether the site is under construction, identified in the Local Development Plan or has planning permission or other Council approval.
- The approval date given refers to the latest date that planning permission was issued.
- The number of houses still to be completed on each site is included and an assessment is made of the potential yield from the site in the programming columns.

All sites in the Dundee City Council area fall within the Greater Dundee Housing Market Area.

The potential yield figures included within the audit take into account past trends and completions, either on-site or within the housing market area.

Section 10 sets out the total number of completions by tenure; this includes the completions from small sites (5 or less units) that are set out in Section 8.

#### 3-Consultation

The Draft Housing Land Audit 2022 has been prepared through consultation with Homes for Scotland, internal housing colleagues, developers and agents. We have undertaken enhanced consultation and used building standard completion information, and developer programming to ensure the accuracy of the draft audit.

The 2021/22 report reveals that housebuilding levels in Dundee are at their highest since 2009 with 524 housing units completed over the past year. Completions on brownfield sites accounted for 54% of total completions.

The Draft Housing Land Audit is out for consultation for four weeks, and any outstanding issues as a result of this consultation will be addressed in this section upon publication of the final audit.

#### 4-Housing Land Supply

The TAYplan Strategic Development Plan sets the housing supply target for each local authority within the TAYplan area. The housing supply target figure for Dundee City has been set at an average annual build rate of 480 homes per annum over the plan period. The following table demonstrates that there is an effective 5 year housing land supply on both greenfield and brownfield sites within the City.

	22/23	23/24	24/25	25/26		LATER YEARS	5 YEAR EFFECTIVE SUPPLY	CONSTRAINED SITES	ESTABLISHED LAND SUPPLY
GREENFIELD	167	155	179	159	134	641	794	86	1435
BROWNFIELD	547	657	673	692	406	641	2975	231	3616
TOTALS	714	812	852	851	540	1282	3769	317	5051

# **5-Greenfield Effective Supply**

HLA ref	LDP2019 Ref	Year added to audit	Site	Owner Developer	Tenure Type	Last Approval	Status	Site Capacity	Units to Build	22/23	23/24	24/25	25/26	26/27	Later Years
200356A		2003	WESTERN GATEWAY, SOUTH GRAY	SPRINGFIELD	PRIVATE	06/11/2018	CONS	371	220	39	0	0	25	30	126
200356C		2003	WESTERN GATEWAY, SOUTH GRAY, PERSIMMON SITE 2 - 30 UNITS	PERSIMMON	PRIVATE	06/11/2018	CONS	30	2	2	0	0	0	0	0
200408		2004	WESTERN GATEWAY SWALLOW	SPRINGFIELD	PRIVATE	11/03/2016	CONS	232	116	0	45	45	26	0	0
200738		2007	DUNDEE WESTERN LIFF PHASE 2	SPRINGFIELD	PRIVATE	06/02/2019	DEPC	100	100	0	10	25	25	25	15
201423		2014	PITKERRO MILL	SOUTH TAY LTD	PRIVATE	20/07/2016	CONS	6	6	6	0	0	0	0	0
201821	H42	2018	WESTERN GATEWAY, LIFF	SPRINGFIELD	PRIVATE		ALDP	30	30	0	0	0	0	0	30
201822	H43	2018	DYKES OF GRAY, NORTH EAST	SPRINGFIELD	PRIVATE		ALDP	215	215	0	0	0	0	25	190
201823	H44	2018	LDP 2019 ALLOCATION, LAND TO WEST OF ST MARTIN CRESCENT AND NORTH OF ADAM CRESCENT	AVANT HOMES	PRIVATE	09/04/2021	ALDP	120	120	0	0	30	30	30	30
201824A	H45	2018	BALLUMBIE ROAD, LAND EAST OF, PHASE 1	STEWART MILNE HOMES	PRIVATE	25/09/2019	CONS	76	42	42	0	0	0	0	0
201824B	H45	2018	BALLUMBIE ROAD, LAND EAST OF, PHASE 2	STEWART MILNE HOMES	PRIVATE	21/05/2021	DEPC	150	150	18	36	36	36	24	0
201829	H41	2018	DYKES OF GRAY, NORTH WEST	SPRINGFIELD	PRIVATE		ALDP	250	250	0	0	0	0	0	250
201830	H46	2018	ARBROATH ROAD, LINLATHEN	KIRKWOOD HOMES	PRIVATE	25/06/2018	CONS	250	176	52	64	43	17	0	0
202056		2020	LAND TO WEST OF DALMAHOY DRIVE	KIRKWOOD HOMES	PRIVATE	17/08/2020	DEPC	49	8	8	0	0	0	0	0
										167	155	179	159	134	641

# 6-Brownfield Sites Supply

HLA ref	LDP2019 Ref	Year added to	Site	Owner Developer	Tenure Type	Last Approval	Status	Site Capacity	Units to	22/23	23/24	24/25	25/26	26/27	Later Years
		audit							Build						
200339	H07	2003	FOGGYLEY GARDENS SOUTH	STRATHMORE HOMES	PRIVATE	08/11/2018	CONS	18	4	4	0	0	0	0	0
200343		2003	TROTTICK, LOWRISE	H AND H	PRIVATE	08/06/2016	CONS	86	9	9	0	0	0	0	0
200347		2003	MONIFIETH ROAD, ARMITSTEAD	H AND H	PRIVATE	18/04/2016	CONS	26	26	13	13	0	0	0	0
200353	H26	2003	LOTHIAN CRESCENT	DCC	RSL		ALDP	15	15	0	0	0	0	0	15
200504B	H32	2005	ABERLADY CRESCENT PHASE 2	DISCOVERY HOMES	PRIVATE	15/02/2019	CONS	25	7	7	0	0	0	0	0
200504C	H32	2005	ABERLADY CRESCENT PHASE 3A	DJ LAING	PRIVATE	30/01/2020		10	10	10	0	0	0	0	0
200504D	H32	2005	ABERLADY CRESCENT PHASE 3B/4	DJ LAING	PRIVATE	22/10/2020		34	34	6	28	0	0	0	0
<u>200611</u>		2006	RIVERSIDE DRIVE, FORMER HOMEBASE SITE	H AND H	PRIVATE	05/06/2007	CONS	202	134	25	25	25	25	34	0
200728	H18	2007	PRINCES STREET	DCC	PRIVATE		ALDP	20	20	0	0	0	0	0	20
200902		2009	CANDLE LANE 3-7, 9-11	HILLCREST HA	PRIVATE	21/06/2018	DEPC	24	24	0	24	0	0	0	0
200909	H11	2009	EAST SCHOOL ROAD, FORMER DOWNFIELD PS	H & H	PRIVATE	18/11/2020	ALDP	23	23	0	0	10	13	0	0
200911	H08	2009	FORMER MACALPINE PS, ST LEONARD PLACE	H&H	PRIVATE	01/12/2021	ALDP	33	31	16	15	0	0	0	0
200913	H09	2009	RANNOCH ROAD, FORMER LAWSIDE ACADEMY	DCC	PRIVATE		ALDP	70	70	0	0	0	20	20	30
<u>201008</u>	H31	2010	LOTHIAN CRESCENT, BOWLING GREEN EAST	DCC	PRIVATE		ALDP	30	30	0	0	0	0	15	15
201009A	H30	2010	HADDINGTON AVENUE PHASE 1	MERCHANT/HOME SCOTLAND	RSL/PRIVATE	15/11/2018	DEPC	13	3	3	0	0	0	0	0
201009B	H30	2010	HADDINGTON AVENUE PHASE 2	MERCHANT/HOME SCOTLAND	RSL/PRIVATE	19/09/2019	DEPC	27	27	15	12	0	0	0	0
<u>201010</u>	H28	2010	TRANENT GROVE	DCC	PRIVATE		ALDP	70	70	0	0	0	20	25	25
201011	H27	2010	WHITFIELD DRIVE, FORMER WHITFIELD PS	GEORGE MARTIN/ANGUS HS	PRIVATE/RSL		ALDP	25	25	0	10	15	0	0	0
201012	H25	2010	LOTHIAN CRESCENT, FORMER WHITFIELD SHOPPING CENTRE	DCC	PRIVATE/RSL		ALDP	30	30	0	0	0	15	15	0
201102		2011	DURA STREET, 3	WHITTET LTD	PRIVATE	06/04/2020	DEPC	8	8	0	0	0	0	4	4
201106		2011	SEAGATE/TRADES LANE	HILLCREST HA	RSL	21/08/2017	CONS	28	28	28	0	0	0	0	0
<u>201 108</u>		2011	DERBY STREET, FORMER MULTIS	DCC/HILLCREST HA	RSL/DCC	20/01/2017	CONS	162	162	80	82	0	0	0	0
201110	H23	2011	BALLOCHMYLE DRIVE, FORMER MOSSGIEL PS PHASE 2	DCC	RSL		ALDP	30	30	0	0	15	15	0	0
201213	H22	2012	HEBRIDES DRIVE, SOUTH EAST, MOM PHASE 4	HOME SCOTLAND	RSL		ALDP	25	25	0	25	0	0	0	0
201214	H21	2012	HEBRIDES DRIVE, NORTH EAST, MOM PHASE 4	HOME SCOTLAND	RSL		ALDP	20	20	0	20	0	0	0	0
201220	H19	2012	BARNS OF CLAVERHOUSE ROAD, LAND AT, MOM PHASE 4	DCC	PRIVATE		ALDP	12	12	0	0	0	0	0	12
201221	H20	2012	HERBRIDES DRIVE, WEST	DCC	PRIVATE		ALDP	10	10	0	0	0	10	0	0

# 6-Brownfield Sites Supply (cont'd)

201303		2013	PITKERRO ROAD, 189-197	HOME SCOTLAND	RSL	09/06/2021	DEPC	29	29	0	29	0	0	0	0
201412		2014	CASTLE STREET, 36	BLUE SPARK LTD	PRIVATE	16/08/2017	CONS	8	0	8	0	0	0	0	0
201413	H03	2014	CLATTO, LAND AT	SCOTTISH WATER	PRIVATE		ALDP	60	60	0	0	0	20	20	20
201414	H10	2014	NITHSDALE AVENUE, LAUDERDALE AVENUE	INVERTAY HOMES LTD	PRIVATE	14/09/2018	DEPC	27	20	10	13	0	0	0	0
201415	H12	2014	KIRKTON ROAD, FORMER ST COLUMBAS PS	H&H	PRIVATE	18/11/2020	ALDP	21	21	0	0	10	11	0	0
201416	H01	2014	DUNHOLM PLACE, FORMER CHARLESTON PS	ABERTAY HA	RSL	05/11/2019	DEPC	43	43	43	0	0	0	0	0
201417	H05	2014	SOUTH ROAD, FORMER LOCHEE PS	DCC	PRIVATE		ALDP	30	30	0	0	15	15	0	0
201421	H15	2014	MAXWELLTOWN WORKS	CALEDONIA HA	RSL	25/10/2018	CONS	57	57	26	31	0	0	0	0
201422		2014	FINAVON STREET, LAND TO EAST OF	ABERTAY HA	RSL	28/10/2016	CONS	56	5	5	0	0	0	0	0
201510	H06	2015	LOCHEE DISTRICT CENTRE	HILLCREST HA	RSL	27/01/2020	DEPC	40	40	0	14	10	16	0	0
<u>201601</u>		2016	GARDYNE ROAD, WINNOCKS, 1	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	28/07/2015	CONS	7	7	7	0	0	0	0	0
201604		2016	NORTH ISLA STREET, 4	CITY BLINDS LTD	PRIVATE	07/05/2015	CONS	8	1	1	0	0	0	0	0
<u>201605</u>		2016	EAST DOCK STREET, 26	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	09/11/2015	CONS	10	2	2	0	0	0	0	0
201606		2016	BARNS OF CLAVERHOUSE ROAD, FORMER OFFICE AND YARD	OGILVIE HOMES LTD	PRIVATE	08/02/2019	CONS	40	22	22	0	0	0	0	0
201702		2017	GRAY STREET, 44	DEASNCOURT LTD	PRIVATE	01/07/2016	CONS	14	14	14	0	0	0	0	0
201710		2017	LIFF ROAD	PANMURE DEVELOPMENTS LTD	PRIVATE	10/03/2017	CONS	12	9	9	0	0	0	0	0
201802		2018	OLD QUARRY ROAD, LAND NORTH OF	KNOWE PROPERTIES LTD	PRIVATE	11/08/2017	CONS	12	3	3	0	0	0	0	0
201807		2018	ELLIOT ROAD, MAINS OF BALGAY	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	18/09/2017	DEPC	5	5	0	5	0	0	0	0
201808		2018	ROSEANGLE, 34-36	FORMOSA DEVELOPMENTS LTD	PRIVATE	07/12/2017	DEPC	7	7	0	7	0	0	0	0
201809		2018	CLEPINGTON ROAD, 213	DISCOVERY HOMES	PRIVATE	22/01/2018	CONS	10	3	3	0	0	0	0	0
201810	H17	2011	CENTRAL WATERFRONT - SITE 6	DCC	PRIVATE	17/08/2018	DEPC	99	99	0	0	25	25	25	24
201109	H17	2011	CENTRAL WATERFRONT	DCC	MIX		ALDP	276	276	0	0	0	40	40	196
201813	H16	2018	MAXWELLTOWN, FORMER MULTIS	DCC	TBC		ALDP	30	30	0	0	0	0	0	30
201814	H34	2018	ETIVE GARDENS, FORMER GOWRIEHILL PS	DCC	TBC		ALDP	35	35	0	0	35	0	0	0
201815	H35	2018	DENOON TERRACE, FORMER HILLSIDE PS	DCC	TBC		ALDP	45	45	0	0	10	10	10	15
201816	H36	2018	HIGH STREET, LOCHEE, FORMER ST MARY'S INFANT SCHOOL	DCC	твс		ALDP	10	10	0	10	0	0	0	0
201817	H37	2018	BURN STREET, FORMER BALDRAGON ACADEMY	DCC	TBC		ALDP	70	70	0	0	25	25	20	0
201819	H39	2018	LONGHAUGH ROAD, FORMER ST LUKE'S & ST MATTHEW'S PS	ANGUS HA	RSL		CONS	42	42	42	0	0	0	0	0
201820	H40	2018	FINTRY TERRACE, FORMER LONGHAUGH PS	ANGUS HA	RSL		CONS	32	32	32	0		0	0	0
201825	H14	2018	GREENMARKET, FORMER RAILYARDS	SCOTTISH ENTREPRISE	твс		ALDP	110	110	0	0	0	0	30	80

# 6-Brownfield Sites Supply (cont'd)

H29	2018	SUMMERFIELD GARDENS	DCC INVERTAY	TBC		DEPC	34	34	0	0	17	17	0	0
H29	2018	SUMMERFIELD GARDENS NORTH 43 UNITS	INVERTAY	PRIVATE	16/10/2017	CONS	43	7	7	0	0	0	0	0
H33	2018	DRUMGEITH ROAD, KELLYFIELD	DCC	TBC		ALDP	100	100	0	0	0	0	25	75
	2019	COLDSIDE ROAD, LAND TO SOUTH OF	CALEDONIA HA	RSL	16/07/2018	DEPC	30	30	0	30	0	0	0	0
	2019	VICTORIA STREET, EAGLE MILL	EAGLE MILL CAPITOL LTD	PRIVATE	24/10/2018	DEPC	34	34	0	0	12	12	10	0
	2019	LANGLANDS STREET SOUTH SIDE	HILLCREST HA	RSL	25/09/2018	DEPC	16	16	0	16	0	0	0	0
	2019	COMMERCIAL STREET, 9-17	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	25/09/2018	DEPC	8	8	8	0	0	0	0	0
	2019	THORTER LOAN, LAND SOUTH OF	HILLCREST HA	RSL	20/12/2018	DEPC	119	119	0	60	59	0	0	0
	2019	SEAGATE, 95	RED COURT DEVELOPMENTS LTD	PRIVATE	05/12/2018	DEPC	17	17	0	0	17	0	0	0
	2019	GUTHRIE STREET, THE OLD MILL	RAMSAY PROPERTIES LTD	PRIVATE	14/12/2018	DEPC	17	17	17	0	0	0	0	0
	2019	FORMER THE ROCK, PUBLIC HOUSE, DICKSON AVENUE	ROCK DEVELOPMENTS LTD	PRIVATE	31/01/2020	DEPC	11	11	0	11	0	0	0	0
	2019	ELLENGOWAN DRIVE, SITE AT	HILLCREST HA	RSL	09/04/2019	DEPC	130	130	40	30	24	36	0	0
	2020	WEST GREEN PARK & BENVIE HOUSE	MILLER HOMES	PRIVATE	28/05/2019	DEPC	54	20	10	10	0	0	0	0
	2020	MURRAYGATE, 11-23	HILLCREST HA	RSL	17/04/2019	DEPC	31	31	0	31	0	0	0	0
	2020	COMMERCIAL STREET, 23	AKG PROPERTY GROUP	PRIVATE	06/05/2019	DEPC	7	7	7	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	TRADES LANE, 28	A B ROGER AND YOUNG LTD	PRIVATE	18/06/2019	DEPC	31	31	0	0	10	10	11	0
	2003	TAYBANK WORKS (MORGAN STREET)	CALEDONIA HA	RSL	20/03/2020	DEPC	37	37	0	37	0	0	0	0
	2020	DICKSON AVENUE, THE JIMMY SHAND	WEST DEVELOPMENTS SCOTLAND LTD	PRIVATE	27/11/2019	DEPC	6	1	1	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	SEAGATE, 36-40	DISCOVERY HOMES	PRIVATE	27/11/2019	DEPC	27	27	0	0	27	0	0	0
	2020	KINGSWAY EAST, FORMER STEWART HOUSE	PERSIMMON	PRIVATE	18/12/2019	DEPC	71	71	0	32	39	0	0	0
	2020	BUTTARS LOAN, LAND TO THE EAST OF	GREEN PADS LTD	PRIVATE	23/01/2020	DEPC	8	8	0	4	4	0	0	0
	2020	DYKES OF GRAY ROAD, HOUSE OF GRAY	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	31/01/2020	DEPC	10	10	0	0	5	5	0	0
	2020	FORMER KINGSPARK SCHOOL	PERSIMMON	PRIVATE	01/10/2019	DEPC	62	28	14	14	0	0	0	0
	2020	DOWNFIELD HOUSE, EAST SCHOOL ROAD	ABERKELL DEVELOPMENTS LTD	PRIVATE	01/05/2020	DEPC	14	14	0	0	14	0	0	0
	2020	LAND NORTH OF PITKERRO ROAD/EAST OF LONGHAUGH ROAD	"LONGHAUGH DEVELOPMENTS LTD"	PRIVATE	21/05/2020	DEPC	14	14	0	7	7	0	0	0
	2020	3 GELLATLY STREET	MCGILL (DOCK STREET) LTD.	PRIVATE	07/12/2021	DEPC	49	49	0	0	0	49	0	0
	2020	HARBOUR CHAMBERS/CUSTOMS HOUSE, DOCK STREET	ALICYDON LTD	PRIVATE	15/10/2020	DEPC	49	49	0	0	0	24	25	0
	2020	BLOCK G, LOWER DENS WORKS, CONSTABLE STREET	STABLES DEVELOPMENT LLP	PRIVATE	14/12/2020	DEPC	24	24	0	0	0	24	0	0
	H29	H29 2018 H33 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019	H29	H29   2018   SUMMERFIELD GARDENS NORTH 43 UNITS   INVERTAY     H33   2018   DRUMGEITH ROAD, KELLYFIELD   DCC     2019   COLDSIDE ROAD, LAND TO SOUTH OF   CALEDONIA HA     2019   VICTORIA STREET, EAGLE MILL   EAGLE MILL CAPITOL LITD     2019   LANGLANDS STREET SOUTH SIDE   HILLCREST HA     2019   COMMERCIAL STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE     2019   THORTER LOAN, LAND SOUTH OF   HILLCREST HA     2019   SEAGATE, 95   RED COURT DEVELOPMENTS LITD     2019   GUTHRIE STREET, THE OLD MILL   RAMSAY PROPERTIES LITD     2019   FORMER THE ROCK, PUBLIC HOUSE, DICKSON   ROCK DEVELOPMENTS LITD     2019   ELLENGOWAN DRIVE, SITE AT   HILLCREST HA     2020   WEST GREEN PARK & BENVIE HOUSE   MILLER HOMES     2020   MURRAYGATE, 11-23   HILLCREST HA     2020   COMMERCIAL STREET, 23   AKG PROPERTY GROUP     2020   TRADES LANE, 28   A B ROGER AND YOUNG LITD     2020   DICKSON AVENUE, THE JIMMY SHAND   WEST DEVELOPMENTS SCOTLAND LITD     2020   SEAGATE, 36-40   DISCOVERY HOMES     2020   SUTTARS LOAN, LAND TO THE EAST OF   GREEN PADS LITD     2020   SUTTARS LOAN, LAND TO THE EAST OF   GREEN PADS LITD     2020   DOWNFIELD HOUSE, EAST SCHOOL ROAD   ABERKELL DEVELOPMENTS LITD     2020   DOWNFIELD HOUSE, EAST SCHOOL ROAD   ABERKELL DEVELOPMENTS LITD     2020   LAND NORTH OF PITKERRO ROAD/EAST OF   LONGHAUGH ROAD     2020   SELDCK G, LOWER DENS WORKS, CONSTABLE   STABLES DEVELOPMENT LITD     2020   BLOCK G, LOWER DENS WORKS, CONSTABLE   STABLES DEVELOPMENT LITP	H29 2018 SUMMERFIELD GARDENS NORTH 43 UNITS INVERTAY PRIVATE  H33 2018 DRUMGEITH ROAD, KELLYFIELD DCC TEC  2019 COLDSIDE ROAD, LAND TO SOUTH OF CALEDONIA HA RSL  2019 VICTORIA STREET, EAGLE MILL EAGLE MILL CAPITOL LTD PRIVATE  2019 LANGLANDS STREET SOUTH SIDE HILLCREST HA RSL  2019 COMMERCIAL STREET, 9-17 PRIVATE  2019 THORTER LOAN, LAND SOUTH OF HILLCREST HA RSL  2019 SEAGATE, 95 RED COURT DEVELOPMENTS LTD PRIVATE  2019 GUTHRIE STREET, THE OLD MILL RAMSAY PROPERTIES LTD PRIVATE  2019 FORMER THE ROCK, PUBLIC HOUSE, DICKSON ROCK DEVELOPMENTS LTD PRIVATE  2019 FORMER THE ROCK, PUBLIC HOUSE, DICKSON ROCK DEVELOPMENTS LTD PRIVATE  2010 WEST GREEN PARK & BENVIE HOUSE MILLER HOMES PRIVATE  2020 WEST GREEN PARK & BENVIE HOUSE MILLER HOMES PRIVATE  2020 TRADES LANE, 28 AB ROGER AND YOUNG LTD PRIVATE  2020 TRADES LANE, 28 AB ROGER AND YOUNG LTD PRIVATE  2020 DICKSON AVENUE, THE JIMMY SHAND WEST DEVELOPMENTS SECOTLAND LTD PRIVATE  2020 SEAGATE, 36-40 DISCOVERY HOMES PRIVATE  2020 SEAGATE, 36-40 DISCOVERY HOMES PRIVATE  2020 DYKES OF GRAY ROAD, HOUSE OF GRAY PRIVATE  2020 DYKES OF GRAY ROAD, HOUSE OF GRAY PRIVATE  2020 TORMER LAND TO THE EAST OF GREEN PADS LTD PRIVATE  2020 DYKES OF GRAY ROAD, HOUSE OF GRAY PRIVATE  2020 DOWNFIELD HOUSE, EAST SCHOOL ROAD ABERKELL DEVELOPMENTS LTD PRIVATE  2020 LAND NORTH OF PITKERRO ROAD/EAST OF LONGHAUGH PORNATE  2020 LAND NORTH OF PITKERRO ROAD/EAST OF LONGHAUGH PORNATE  2020 TRABOUR CHAMBERS/CUSTOMS HOUSE, CONSTABLE  2020 BLOCK G, LOWER DENS WORKS, CONSTABLE  2020 BLOCK G, LOWER DENS WORKS, CONSTABLE  2020 BLOCK G, LOWER DENS WORKS, CONSTABLE	H29	H29	H29   2018   SUMMERFIELD GARDENS NORTH 43 UNITS   INVERTIAY   PRIVATE   16/10/2017   CONS   43     H33   2018   DRUMGEITH ROAD, KELLYFIELD   DCC   TBC   ALDP   100     ALDP   100   DCC   TBC   ALDP   100     ALDP   100   DCC   TBC   ALDP   100     ALDR   2019   VIGTORIA STREET, EAGLE MILL   EAGLE MILL CAPITOL LTD   PRIVATE   24/10/2018   DEPC   34     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, EAGLE MILL   EAGLE MILL CAPITOL LTD   PRIVATE   24/10/2018   DEPC   34     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, EAGLE MILL   EAGLE MILL CAPITOL LTD   PRIVATE   24/10/2018   DEPC   16     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   25/09/2018   DEPC   18     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   25/09/2018   DEPC   19     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   25/09/2018   DEPC   19     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   25/09/2018   DEPC   19     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   25/09/2018   DEPC   19     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   05/12/2018   DEPC   17     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, THE OLD MILL   RAMSAY PROPERTIES LTD   PRIVATE   14/12/2018   DEPC   17     AUTOMOTION OF THE PRIVATE   PRIVATE   31/10/2020   DEPC   17     AUTOMOTION OF THE PRIVATE   PRIVATE   31/10/2020   DEPC   11     AUTOMOTION OF THE PRIVATE   PRIVATE   31/10/2020   DEPC   11     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, THE OLD MILL   PRIVATE   AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 34   HILLOREST HA   RSL   17/04/2019   DEPC   31     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 23   AKG PROPERTY GROUP   PRIVATE   28/08/2019   DEPC   31     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 23   AKG PROPERTY GROUP   PRIVATE   18/09/2019   DEPC   31     AUTOMOTION OF THE STREET, 34   AUTOMOTION	H29   2018   SUMMERFIELD GARDENS NORTH 43 UNITS   INVERTITY   PRIVATE   16/10/2017   CONS   43   7     H33   2018   DRUMGETH ROAD, KELLYFIELD   DCC   TBC   ALDP   100   100     2019   COLDSIDE ROAD, LAND TO SOUTH OF   CALEDONIA HA   RSL   16/07/2018   DEPC   30   30     2019   VICTORIA STREET, EAGLE MILL   EAGLE MILL CAPITOL LTD   PRIVATE   24/10/2018   DEPC   34   34     2019   LANGLANDS STREET SOUTH SIDE   HILLCREST HA   RSL   25/09/2018   DEPC   16   16     2019   COMMERCIAL STREET, 9-17   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   25/09/2018   DEPC   16   16     2019   THORTER LOAN, LAND SOUTH OF   HILLCREST HA   RSL   20/12/2018   DEPC   17   17     2019   SEAGATE, 95   RED COURT DEVELOPMENTS   PRIVATE   05/12/2018   DEPC   17   17     2019   GUITHRIS STREET, THE OLD MILL   RAMSAY PROPERTIES LTD   PRIVATE   14/12/2018   DEPC   17   17     2019   GUITHRIS STREET, THE OLD MILL   RAMSAY PROPERTIES LTD   PRIVATE   31/01/2020   DEPC   11   11     2019   ELLENGOWAN DRIVE, SITE AT   HILLCREST HA   RSL   09/04/2019   DEPC   17   17     2019   ELLENGOWAN DRIVE, SITE AT   HILLCREST HA   RSL   09/04/2019   DEPC   13   31     2020   WEST GREEN PARK & BENNEHOUSE   MILLER HOMES   PRIVATE   28/05/2019   DEPC   54   20     2020   OMMRANGATE, 11-23   HILLCREST HA   RSL   17/04/2019   DEPC   51   31     2020   TRADES LANE, 28   A B ROGER AND YOUNG LTD   PRIVATE   18/06/2019   DEPC   31   31     2020   TRADES LANE, 28   A B ROGER AND YOUNG LTD   PRIVATE   18/06/2019   DEPC   37   37     2020   DICKSON AVENUE, THE JIMMY SHAND   WEST DEVELOPMENTS   SCOTLAND LTD   SCOTLAND LTD   PRIVATE   27/11/2019   DEPC   7   7     2020   SEAGATE, 36-40   DICKSON AVENUE, THE JIMMY SHAND   WEST DEVELOPMENTS   PRIVATE   23/01/2020   DEPC   7   7     2020   SUMES OF GRAY ROAD, HOUSE OF GRAY   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   21/01/2019   DEPC   7   7     2020   DICKSON AVENUE, THE JIMMY SHAND   WEST DEVELOPMENTS   PRIVATE   21/01/2019   DEPC   7   7     2020   SUMES OF GRAY ROAD, HOUSE OF GRAY   PRIVATE   PRIVATE   21/01/2019   DEPC   7   7     2020   DOWNERLD HOUSE,	H29	1922   2018   SUMMERFIELD CAPDENS NORTH 43 UNITS   INVERTAY   PRIVATE   16/10/2017   CONS   43   7   7   0	H20   2019   SUMMERFIELD GARDENS NORTH 48 UNITS   INVERTAY	1999   2018   SUMMERFIELD GARDENS NORTH 43 UNITS   INVERTAY   PRIVATE   16/10/2017   COMS   43   7   7   0   0   0   0   0   143   301   2018   COLUMNGETH ROAD, KELLYFIELD   DCC   TEC   ALP   100   100   0   0   0   0   0   0   0	Habit   1988   SUMMERFRELD GARDERS NORTH 43 UNITS   NIVERIAY   PRIVATE   15/10/2017   CONS   43   7   7   0   0   0   0   0   26

# 6-Brownfield Sites Supply (cont'd)

202042	2020	LAND TO NORTH OF DRUMGEITH ROAD AND SOUTH OF, STRATHAVEN TERRACE	"MERCHANT HOMES PARTNERSHIPS"	PRIVATE	22/10/2020	DEPC	12	12	0	12	0	0	0	0
202051	2020	LAND AT, 114 - 116 PITKERRO ROAD	ANGUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION LTD	RSL	02/02/2021	DEPC	21	21	0	0	21	0	0	0
202053	2020	"LAND AT MURRAYFIELD PLACE, MURRAYFIELD DRIVE, WHITFIELD AVENUE AND MURRAYFIELD TERRACE"	DUNDEE CITY COUNCIL	DCC	01/03/2022*	DEPC	42	42	0	0	22	20		0
202055	2020	28 - 30 TANNADICE STREET AND 32 COURT STREET	ARB PROPERTIES	PRIVATE	19/03/2021	DEPC	7	7	0	0	0	0	7	0
202065	2020	57 DALKEITH ROAD	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	09/11/2020	DEPC	8	8	0	0	8	0	0	0
202066	2020	LAND EAST AND WEST OF LIFF PLACE AND NORTH OF, BROWNHILL PLACE	BLACKWOOD HOMES AND CARE	RSL	14/12/2020	DEPC	23	23	0	0	23	0	0	0
202067	2020	LAND AT GOURDIE PLACE, GOURDIE CRESCENT	BLACKWOOD HOMES AND CARE	RSL	14/12/2020	DEPC	22	22	0	0	0	22	0	0
202068	2020	LAND TO SOUTH OF, BUTTARS ROAD	BLACKWOOD HOMES AND CARE	RSL	14/12/2020	DEPC	9	9	0	0	9	0	0	0
			BLACKWOOD HOMES AND CARE	RSL	21/05/2021	DEPC	12	12	0	0	0	12	0	0
202071	2021	SOAPWORK LANE HOUSE, SOAPWORK LANE	HILLCREST HOUSING	RSL	19/02/2021	DEPC	15	15	0	0	0	15	0	0
202104	2021	LAND AT FORMER ROSEBANK PRIMARY SCHOOL	DISCOVERY HOMES (DUNDEE) LTD		16/06/2021	DEPC	40	40	0	0	20	20	0	0
202106	2021	SITE OF FORMER HOTEL 40 COUPAR ANGUS ROAD	REDWOOD BIRKHILL LIMITED	RSL	17/08/2021	DEPC	18	18	0	0	18	0	0	0
202107	2021	FERNBRAE HOSPITAL 329 PERTH ROAD	S1 WEST LTD	PRIVATE	15/12/2021	DEPC	22	22	0	0	12	10	0	0
202108	2021	LAND AT FORMER TAY ROPE WORKS MAGDALEN YARD ROAD	F & H DEVELOPMENTS	PRIVATE	21/03/2021	DEPC	9	9	0	0	9	0	0	0
202109	2021	17 - 21 GARRY TERRACE	SIDLAW BUILDING AND JOINERY SERVICES	PRIVATE	19/11/2021	DEPC	9	9	0	0	9	0	0	0
202201	2022	LAND TO EAST OF 247 BLACKNESS ROAD	DCC	RSL	09/02/2022	DEPC	24	24	0	0	12	12	0	0
202202	2022	SITE OF FORMER FACTORY BALLINDEAN ROAD	CULLROSS LTD/CALEDONIA HOUSING ASSOCIATION/BOC LTD	RSL/PRIVATE	16/03/2022	DEPC	67	67	0	0	17	20	20	10
202203	2022	6 NICOLL STREET	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	17/03/2022	DEPC	10	10	0	0	10	0	0	0
202204	2022	SITE OF FORMER JAMES KEILLER BUILDINGS 32 - 34 MAINS LOAN	BARRATT NORTH SCOTLAND & MARKETGAIT DEVELOPMENTS	PRIVATE	17/02/2022	DEPC	223	223	0	0	53	50	50	70
		55 BURNSIDE STREET	HILLCREST HA	RSL	20/07/2018	DEPC	54	54	0	0	0	54	0	0
									547	657	673	692	406	641

## **7-Constrained Sites**

#### **Greenfield Sites**

HLA ref	LDP2019 Ref	Year added to audit	Site	Owner Developer	Tenure Type		Reason Constrained	Site Capacity	Units to Build
201424	H47	2014	LAND TO EAST OF STRATHYRE AVENUE		PRIVATE	CONSTRAINED	OWNERSHIP	26	26
201509		2015	LINLATHEN HOUSE, LAND TO EAST OF		PRIVATE	CONSTRAINED	PHYSICAL	60	60
								86	86

#### **Brownfield Sites**

HLA ref	LDP2019 Ref	Year added to audit	Site	Owner Developer	Tenure Type	Status	Reason Constrained	Site Capacity	Units to Build
200321	H13	2003	QUEEN VICTORIA WORKS	PRIVATE	PRIVATE	CONSTRAINED	OWNERSHIP	50	50
200723		2007	WALLACE CRAIGIE WORKS		PRIVATE	CONSTRAINED	PHYSICAL	100	100
200807	H04	2008	QUARRY GARDENS	DCC	PRIVATE	CONSTRAINED	PHYSICAL	18	18
201205	H02	2012	EARN CRESCENT, LAND AT	DCC	PRIVATE	CONSTRAINED	LAND USE	20	20
202008		2020	WEST MARKETGAIT FORMER GARAGE	MARKETGAIT DUNDEE LTD	PRIVATE	CONSTRAINED	LAND USE	43	43
								231	231

# 8-Small Sites

HLA ref	Site	Owner/ Developer	capacity	Units to Build
201013	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	4	4
201304	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	5	5
201410	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	3	3
201506	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	5	5
201607	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	7	7
201705	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	12	9
201805	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	17	17
201904	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	18	18
202004	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	71	47
202105	SMALL SITES (LESS THAN 5 UNITS)	PRIVATE	16	16
			158	131

# 9-Completions (By Tenure)

AREA	YEAR TO		JUNE 1996	;		JUNE 1997	7	1	JUNE 1998	3		JUNE 1999	9		JUNE 2000	)		JUNE 2001			JUNE 2002	2		UNE 200	3
AREA	TENURE	LA	НА		LA		Р	LA	НА		LA		Р	LA			LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA		Р
DUNDE	E CITY	0	247	592	0	328	285	0	61	348	0	158	320	0	125	392	0	149	356	0	404	589	0	133	392
ТОТ	AL		839			613			409			478			517			505			993			525	
AREA	YEAR TO		JUNE 2004	ļ		JUNE 2005	5	ı	IUNE 2006	6		JUNE 2007	7		JUNE 2008	3	JUNE 2009				JUNE 2010			JUNE 201	
AKEA	TENURE	LA	НА		LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р
DUNDE	E CITY	0	186	440	0	200	320	0	319	317	0	134	450	0	71	629	0	205	416	0	107	265	11	80	346
ТОТ	AL		626			520			636			584			700			621			372			437	
	YEAR TO																APRIL 2017								
ADEA	TEAR IO		APRIL 2012			APRIL 2010			APRIL 2014			APRIL 201			APRIL 2010			APRIL 2017			APRIL 2018			APRIL 201	9
AREA	TENURE	LA	HA		LA	APRIL 2013 HA		LA	APRIL 2014 HA		LA	APRIL 2019 HA	5 P	LA	APRIL 2010 HA		LA	APRIL 2017 HA	P	LA	APRIL 2018 HA	P	LA	HA	9 P
AREA DUNDE	TENURE																				1				
	TENURE EE CITY	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р	LA	НА	Р
DUNDE TOTA	TENURE EE CITY	LA 53	<b>HA</b> 81	P 165	LA 6	<b>HA</b> 10	P 131	LA 12	<b>HA</b> 50	P 106	LA	HA 68	Р	LA	<b>HA</b> 90	Р	LA	HA 161	Р	LA	HA 63	Р	LA	HA 175	Р
DUNDE	TENURE EE CITY	LA 53	HA 81 299	P 165	LA 6	HA 10 147	P 131	LA 12	<b>HA</b> 50 168	P 106	LA	HA 68	Р	LA	<b>HA</b> 90	Р	LA	HA 161	Р	LA	HA 63	Р	LA	HA 175	Р
DUNDE TOTA	TENURE EE CITY TAL  YEAR TO TENURE	LA 53	HA 81 299 JULY 2020	P 165	<b>LA</b> 6	HA 10 147 APRIL 202	P 131	LA 12	HA 50 168 JGUST 20	P 106	LA	HA 68	Р	LA	<b>HA</b> 90	Р	LA	HA 161	Р	LA	HA 63	Р	LA	HA 175	Р

### 10-Sites Removed From Audit

Sites Completed & Removed from the Audit

HLA ref	Site	Planning Application	Reasons for removal from audit
202017	WEST QUEEN STREET, 16	19/00964/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
202054	1A WEST BELL STREET	20/00644/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
202105E	10 FAIRFIELD ROAD	21/00651/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
202105F	51 REFORM STREET, MF SPACE	21/00719/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
202105G	51 REFORM STREET, CAFÉ	21/00501/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
202105H	LAND AT FORMER CRAIGIE HOUSE	21/00634/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
2021051	140 STRATHERN ROAD	20/00798/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
202105J	7 BALGOWAN DRIVE	21/00471/FULL	SITE COMPLETED
202105K	GROUND AND BASE 28 SOUTH TAY STREET	21/00361/FULL	SITE COMPLETED

#### **Appendix 1 Effectiveness Criteria**

The following criteria for judging the effectiveness of housing sites within the established supply are taken from PAN 2/2010: Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audits (August 2010).

Ownership: the site is in the ownership or control of a party which can be expected to develop it or release it for development. Where a site is in the ownership of a local authority or other public body, it should be included only where it is part of a programme of land disposal.

**Physical:** the site, or relevant part of it, is free from constraints related to slope, aspect, flood risk, ground stability or vehicular access which would preclude its development. Where there is a solid commitment to removing the constraints in time to allow development in the period under consideration, or the market is strong enough to fund the remedial work required, the site should be included in the effective land supply.

**Contamination:** previous use has not resulted in contamination of the site or, if it has, commitments have been made which would allow it to be developed to provide marketable housing;

**Deficit Funding:** any public funding required to make residential development economically viable is committed by the public bodies concerned.

Marketability: the site, or a relevant part of it, can be developed in the period under consideration.

**Infrastructure:** the site is either free of infrastructure constraints, or any required infrastructure can be provided realistically by the developer or another party to allow development.

Land Use: housing is the sole preferred use of the land in planning terms, or if housing is one of a range of possible uses other factors such as ownership and marketability point to housing being a realistic option.

#### **Appendix 2 Glossary and Terms**

The definitions of terms used within the audit reflect the glossary contained in the SPP, (2014) and PAN 2/2010: Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audits (August 2010).

Brownfield land: land which has previously been developed. The term may encompass vacant or derelict land; infill sites; land occupied by redundant or unused buildings; and developed land within the settlement boundary where further intensification of use is considered acceptable

Constrained housing land supply: the part of the established housing land supply which at the time of any audit is not considered to be effective.

**Effective housing land supply:** the part of the established housing land supply that is free or is expected to be free of development constraints in the period under consideration, and will therefore be available for the construction of housing.

**Established housing land supply:** the total housing land supply – including both constrained and unconstrained sites. This will include the effective housing land supply, plus the remaining capacity of sites under construction; sites with planning consent; sites in adopted local plans; and other land and buildings with agreed potential for housing development.

**Greenfield land:** land which has never been previously developed, or fully-restored formerly derelict land which has been brought back into active or beneficial use for agricultural, forestry, environmental purposes, or outdoor recreation.

Housing Land Audit: the mechanism for monitoring the housing land supply and identifying those sites within the established land supply which are expected to be effective within the period under consideration.

**Housing Land Requirement:** the difference between a figure arrived at by considering market demand, demographic need and other relevant factors, and the effective housing land supply.

**Housing Market Area:** a geographical area which is relatively self-contained in terms of housing demand; i.e. a large percentage of the people moving home or settling in the area will have sought a dwelling only in that area.

**Private sector housing:** housing for sale or rent provided by private developers or other commercial organisations. The term "owner-occupied sector" excludes the private rented element.

**Public sector housing:** general and special needs housing provision by registered social landlords and local authorities and other social housing providers for rent.

#### **Contact Details**

Planning Team
City Development Department
Dundee City Council
Dundee House
50 North Lindsay Street
Dundee, DD1 1LS
For general advice and information,
email planning@dundeecity.gov.uk

Website: <a href="http://www.dundeecity.gov.uk/">http://www.dundeecity.gov.uk/</a>

This information is made available in large print or in an alternative format that meets your needs.	
Chinese	欲知詳情,請致電:01382435825
Russian	Более подробную информацию можно 01382 435825
Urdu	مريدمطوات كے لئے براغ مريانی 01382 435825 پاؤن كريں۔
Polish	po dalszą informację zadzwoń pod numer 01382 435825
Alternative Formats	For further information please contact the issuer of this publication

